
SOUTHERN NEVADA WATER AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 18, 2019  

MINUTES 
 

CALL TO ORDER 9:00 a.m., Board Chambers, Southern Nevada Water Authority,                 
100 City Parkway, Seventh Floor, Las Vegas, Nevada 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT Marilyn Kirkpatrick, Chair 
    Scott Black 
    Claudia Bridges 
    Cedric Crear 
    Jim Gibson 
    Justin Jones  
    Dan Stewart  
         
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT  None 
 
STAFF PRESENT John Entsminger, Julie Wilcox, Greg Walch, Kevin Bethel, Colby 

Pellegrino 
   
OTHERS PRESENT  

Unless otherwise indicated, all members present voted in the affirmative. 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
For complete comments, audio is available online at snwa.com 

Chair Kirkpatrick asked the new board members to introduce themselves. Director Crear, City of Las Vegas 
Councilman, introduced himself and disclosed that his spouse worked for the Authority. Director Stewart, City of 
Henderson Councilman, introduced himself. Director Bridges, Boulder City Councilwoman, introduced herself.  

ITEM NO. 

1. For Possible Action: Approve agenda with the inclusion of tabled and/or reconsidered items, emergency 
items and/or deletion of items, and approve the minutes from the regular meeting of May 23, 2019. 

FINAL ACTION:  Director Gibson made a motion to approve the agenda for this meeting, and to approve the 
minutes from the regular meeting of May 23, 2019. The motion was approved. 

2. For Possible Action: Appoint a chairman and vice chairman to preside over the Board of Directors for 
Fiscal Year 2019/20. 

FINAL ACTION:  Director Black made a motion to reappoint Marilyn Kirkpatrick as Chair and to appoint Dan 
Stewart as Vice Chair. The motion was approved. 

3. For Possible Action: Appoint one director to serve as a commissioner of the Colorado River Commission 
of Nevada for the remainder of the existing two-year term. 

FINAL ACTION:  Director Gibson made a motion to appoint Dan Stewart to serve as a commissioner of the 
Colorado River Commission of Nevada for the remainder of the existing two-year term. The 
motion was approved. 

4. For Possible Action: Conduct a public hearing regarding an ordinance proposed for adoption by the 
Clark County Board of County Commissioners related to the cessation of the quarter-cent sales tax for 
water and wastewater infrastructure projects. 

John Entsminger, General Manager, gave a presentation regarding the quarter-cent sales tax for water and wastewater 
infrastructure projects. A copy of his presentation is attached to these minutes.  

Director Crear asked about the procedure for removing the sunset on the quarter-cent sales tax. Mr. Entsminger said 
that after the Authority holds the required public hearing being conducted at this meeting, the Clark County Board of 
Commissioners would need to introduce an ordinance and then hold a public hearing and vote to remove the sunset. 
The ordinance would need to be approved by two-thirds of the County Commissioners.  

  



SOUTHERN NEVADA WATER AUTHORITY – MINUTES – JULY 18, 2019 – PAGE TWO 

Director Jones asked if any quarter-cent sales tax revenues would be used for the proposed pipeline to bring water 
from eastern Nevada into Clark County. Mr. Entsminger said that 100 percent of the sales tax revenues would be 
dedicated to either defeasing debt for projects within Clark County or possibly the Colorado River Basin, but that no 
sales tax revenues would be used for the groundwater project if the Board receommended doing so. 
Chair Kirkpatrick said that she supported the commitment to use sales tax revenues for projects within Clark County. 
Mr. Entsminger said that significant future capital projects in the Las Vegas Valley support the need for continuing 
the quarter-cent sales tax. 
Chair Kirkpatrick opened the public hearing. 
Kyle Roerink, Great Basin Water Network, said that he hoped that sales tax revenues stayed in Clark County and 
were not used for the groundwater project. 
Priscilla Howell, City of Henderson, said that she supported the continuation of the quarter-cent sales tax for the 
benefit of the City of Henderson water customers. 
Patrick Donnelly, Center for Biological Diversity, said that he hoped the proposed restriction on using quarter-cent 
sales tax revenues for the groundwater pipeline was written into the County’s ordinance. 
Tom Morley, Local 872, said he supported the continuation of the sales tax. He said that discontinuing the sales tax 
would have a negative impact on working families. 
Gary Milliken, Nevada Contractors, said that the sales tax provided a steady revenue stream for essential infrastructure 
and allowed for tourists to help fund infrastructure. 
Terry Murphy, Las Vegas, said that she had served on several Authority advisory committees and that she understood 
the value of water. She said that she supported the continuation of the sales tax for water and wastewater projects. 
She also submitted written comments for the record.  
Paul Moradkhan, Las Vegas Metro Chamber of Commerce, said that the Authority’s prior citizen processes were 
open and transparent and that the committees had discussed the need for the sales tax continuing. He supported the 
continuation of the sales tax. He also said that the business community pays its share for water infrastructure and is 
not subsidized by residents.  
Angie Sullivan, Las Vegas, said that water was a concern for schools and teachers. She said that some school water 
and wastewater infrastructure needed to be improved. She said that if tax revenues could be used to fund water 
infrastructure, she wanted to know how sales tax revenues could be used to increase funding for public schools.  
Randy DeVaul, City of North Las Vegas, supported removing the sunset on the quarter-cent sales tax. He said that 
the City of North Las Vegas used the sales tax to pay for infrastructure, such as its wastewater reclamation facility. 
Sonny Vinuya said that the Asian Chamber of Commerce supported the contination of the quarter-cent sales tax. 
Jennifer Lewis said that she supported the removal of the sunset on the quarter-cent sales tax. 
Dennis Porter, Boulder City, said that he supported the continuation of the quarter-cent sales tax. He said that Boulder 
City had benefitted from using sales tax revenues for infrastructure projects. 
Mackenzie Warren said that the Southern Nevada Home Builders Association supported the continuation of the sales 
tax. 
Guy Hobbs said that in reference to the question of residents subsidizing resorts, approximately 60 percent of water 
rates are paid by residential customers with the remaining 40 percent of water rates being paid by commercial users. 
Nick DiFranco said that Operating Engineers Local 12 supported the removal of the sunset on the quarter-cent sales 
tax. The sales tax was paid by tourists and residents and was critical in funding needed infrastructure. 
Ed Uehling said that the fourth richest gold deposit in the world had been handed over to one or two companies. He 
said Nevada’s share of Colorado River water benefits one agency and its 1,000 employees. He spoke concerning 
employee salary increases and the Authority’s spending on infrastructure project construction and maintenance. He 
provided additional written comments for the record. 
Rusty McAllister said that the Nevada State AFL-CIO supported the continuation of the quarter-cent sales tax. 
Thomas G. said that he was a publisher working with Ed Uehling. He read into the record a statement from Mr. 
Uehling on four replacements of sales tax revenues. A copy of his comments are attached to these minutes. 
 



SOUTHERN NEVADA WATER AUTHORITY – MINUTES – JULY 18, 2019 – PAGE THREE 

 
Additional comments were submitted in writing from Peter Guzman and Warren Hardy. A copy of their comments 
are attached. 
Chair Kirkpatrick closed the public hearing. She asked for clarification on what water projects would be funded with 
sales tax revenues. Mr. Entsminger said that sales tax revenues would be used for projects within Clark County or 
potentially on the Colorado River. He used the example of funding for the Drop 2 (Brock) Reservoir on the Colorado 
River, located in California, which benefitted Nevada. 

Director Gibson suggested that the Board send its recommendations on the sales tax to the Board of County 
Commissioners. Director Crear said that he supported the continuation of the sales tax to fund future, essential water 
and wastewater projects throughout the valley. Vice Chair Stewart said water infrastructure in Southern Nevada was 
vital to the health of the community and that he supported removing the sunset clause. Director Black said he had visited 
some of the infrastructure currently under construction and that it made logical sense to remove the sunset clause. 

FINAL ACTION:  Director Gibson made a motion to support the recommendation by staff, agree to petition the 
Clark County Commission to take action to lift the sunset provision on the quarter-cent sales tax 
for water and wastewater projects, and exclude sales tax proceeds from funding all future 
expenditures associated with the SNWA’s Groundwater Development Project, and that the Board 
memorialize these actions by formal letter sent to the Clark County Commission. The motion 
was approved. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Chair Kirkpatrick requested that Item 5 be removed from the Consent Agenda and taken separately. 

6. For Possible Action: Approve and authorize the General Manager to sign an interlocal agreement 
between Clark County and the Authority for modification of water facilities as part of the Relocation of 
the North Las Vegas Lateral Project: Hollywood Boulevard.  

7. For Possible Action: Approve and authorize the General Manager to sign Change Order No. 4 to the 
contract with MMC, Inc., for sodium hypochlorite system upgrades at the River Mountains Water 
Treatment Facility, which extends the substantial and final completion dates by 165 calendar days, and 
authorize the General Manager to utilize an additional change order contingency of 150 calendar days 
for future needs.  

8. For Possible Action: Approve and authorize the General Manager to sign Change Order No. 3 to the 
contract with Barnard of Nevada, Inc., for construction of the Low Lake Level Pumping Station electrical 
substation, increasing the contract amount by $344,965 and extending the final completion date by 42 
calendar days. 

9. For Possible Action: Ratify the approval of a five-year assistance agreement between the Bureau of 
Reclamation and the Authority to receive grant funding in the amount of $1,375,000 to address the long-
term management of the Las Vegas Wash with the Authority providing up to $3,030,944.49 of in-kind 
contributions, and authorize the General Manager to approve future modifications only if the future 
modifications do not fiscally impact the Authority. 

10. For Possible Action: Ratify the approval of a sub-grant agreement between the Nevada Division of 
Environmental Protection and the Authority to receive grant funding in the amount of $37,000 for 
regional water quality activities and related public outreach initiatives with the Authority providing up 
to $50,000 of in-kind contributions. 

FINAL ACTION:  Vice Chair Stewart made a motion to approve staff’s recommendations. The motion was 
approved. 

BUSINESS AGENDA 

5. For Possible Action: Approve and authorize the General Manager to sign an interlocal agreement among 
Clark County, the City of Henderson, City of Las Vegas, City of North Las Vegas and the Authority, 
through which the Authority would reimburse each entity for the purchase of fire-department training 
simulators, for a total amount not to exceed $280,000.  

 



SOUTHERN NEVADA WATER AUTHORITY – MINUTES – JULY 18, 2019 – PAGE FOUR 

Mr. Entsminger said that in line with the Authority’s efforts to conserve water in all sectors, the proposed agreement would 
reimburse local jurisdictions for the purchase of fire-department training simulators. These simulators allow fire 
departments to continue to conduct essential training, while reducing the amount of water used in those trainings. Chair 
Kirkpatrick recognized the firefighters in attendance at the meeting. 

FINAL ACTION:  Director Jones made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation. The motion was approved.  

11. For Possible Action: Approve and authorize the General Manager to sign, in substantially the same form 
as attached hereto, an amendment to the existing agreement between Faiss Foley Warren and the 
Authority to provide one additional year of integrated communication and support services related to 
the Water Conservation Coalition, water quality, water resources, and environmental initiatives, in an 
amount not to exceed $900,000. 

Director Crear asked if professional services agreement were put out to bid. Mr. Entsminger said that standard practice 
was to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) to secure professional services. Julie Wilcox, Deputy General Manager - 
Administration, said that the proposed amendment with Faiss Foley Warren sought to capitalize on the current 
communication campaigns that were underway and that an RFP would be issued for services next year. Director Crear 
noted that he could not support the item because it was not bid out. Chair Kirkpatrick committed to working with staff 
to ensure a more transparent process. Vice Chair Stewart noted the advantage of maintaining communication and 
messaging continuity with the contract. 

FINAL ACTION:  Vice Chair Stewart made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation. The motion was approved 
with Director Crear voting “no.” 

12. For Possible Action: Adopt a resolution consenting to the refunding of certain Las Vegas Valley Water 
District General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds (the “Bonds”) that are additionally secured by SNWA 
Pledged Revenues and requesting the Board of Directors of the Las Vegas Valley Water District to issue 
general obligation (limited tax) (additionally secured by SNWA Pledged Revenues) refunding bonds in 
the maximum principal amount of $105,260,000 in one or more series to refinance all or any portion of 
the Bonds. 

FINAL ACTION:  Director Jones made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation. The motion was approved. 

13. For Information Only: Receive an update from staff on water resources including, but not limited to, 
drought conditions in the Colorado River Basin, conservation programs and activities, activities on the 
Colorado River, and water resource acquisition and development.  

Colby Pellegrino, Director of Water Resources, gave a water resources and conservation programs update presentation. 
A copy of her presentation is attached to these minutes. 

NO ACTION REQUIRED 

14. For Possible Action: Approve a resolution in support of preventing the installation of non-functional turf 
in Southern Nevada through updates to municipal codes. 

Ms. Pellegrino gave a presentation on the resolution. A copy of her presentation is attached to these minutes. 

Director Black said that staff had provided an overview of potential turf conversions and water saving initiatives for his 
ward in North Las Vegas and encouraged the other Board members to work with staff in their own jurisdictions. 

Director Jones said that additional conservation was needed from commercial businesses and asked for support in 
finding incentives to encourage businesses to convert non-functional turf. Mr. Entsminger said that staff would continue 
to work with the Board and with planning staff on developing incentives. 

Director Crear asked that staff work with him on identifying conservation opportunities in his ward. 

FINAL ACTION:  Director Jones made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation. The motion was approved. 

 
 
 
 
 



SOUTHERN NEVADA WATER AUTHORITY – MINUTES – JULY 18, 2019 – PAGE FIVE 

 
Public Comment 
Ed Uehling spoke concerning Faiss Foley Warren leasing space from the Authority in the Molasky Corporate Center. 
He said that the community needs water infrastructure but suggested that there were other means for funding the 
infrastructure rather than through sales taxes. 

Adjournment 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 10:36 a.m.  

 
Copies of all original agenda items and minutes, including all attachments, are on file in the General Manager’s office at the 

 Las Vegas Valley Water District, 1001 South Valley View Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada. 


































	REGULAR MEETING
	REGULAR MEETING
	JULY 18, 2019
	JULY 18, 2019
	MINUTES
	MINUTES



